

## PATIENT INFORMATION LEAFLET

## **Dermamist**®

white soft paraffin 10%w/w

# Read all of this leaflet carefully before you start using this medicine because it contains important information for you.

- Always use this medicine exactly as described in this leaflet or as your doctor or pharmacist has told you. Keep this leaflet. You may need to read it again.
- Ask your pharmacist if you need more information or advice.
- If you get any side effects, talk to your doctor or pharmacist. This includes and possible side effects not listed in this leaflet (see section 4).
- You must contact a doctor if you do not feel better or if you feel worse.

#### What is in this leaflet:

- 1. What Dermamist is and what it is used for
- 2. What you need to know before you use Dermamist
- 3. How to use Dermamist
- 4. Possible side effects
- 5. How to store Dermamist
- 6. Contents of the pack and other information

## 1. What Dermamist is and what it is used for

Dermamist is an emollient which means it helps the skin retain moisture. It contains pure white soft paraffin in a pressurised aerosol spray. Dermamist is used for the treatment of dry skin conditions including:

- eczema (inflammation of the skin with redness, dryness and itching)
- pruritus of the elderly (itching and dryness associated with ageing skin)
- ichthyosis (dry, scaly skin).

Dry skin is caused by a lack of water in the outer layer of skin cells known as the stratum corneum (top layer of the skin). When this layer becomes dry it becomes cracked, scaly and sometimes itchy.

The white soft paraffin acts as an emollient when applied to the skin. The white soft paraffin forms an oily layer on the skin which helps prevent water from evaporating from the skin surface, especially when the skin is already moist after having a bath or shower.

## 2. What you need to know before you use Dermamist

#### Do not use Dermamist:

• if you are allergic (hypersensitive) to white soft paraffin or any of the ingredients of Dermamist (see section 6 Further information).

If the above applies to you, or if you are not sure, speak to your doctor or pharmacist before you use Dermamist.

## Warnings and precautions:

- Always use Dermamist where there is some fresh air, such as an open door or window. Do not breathe in the spray. Solvent abuse can kill instantly.
- Do not smoke or go near naked flames risk of severe burns. Fabric (clothing, bedding, dressings etc) that has been in contact with this product burns more easily and is a serious fire hazard. Washing clothing and bedding may reduce product build-up but not totally remove it.
- Do not use Dermamist on broken skin, such as cuts and lesions from which blood, fluid or pus is oozing.
- If you accidentally spray Dermamist into your eyes, nose or mouth rinse
  well with warm water and let your doctor or pharmacist know if you feel
  any discomfort.
- Do not spray the area on which you are standing as it may make the surface slippery.

## Pregnancy and breast-feeding

Dermamist may be used by patients who are pregnant or breast-feeding.

#### 3. How to use Dermamist

Dermamist is for external use only. It should only be applied to the skin. Shake the can well before use.

## Adults, children and the elderly:

- bathe or shower for 10 minutes or less
- pat the skin dry
- apply Dermamist immediately. Hold the spray about 20 centimetres (8 inches) from the skin and while spraying move the can rapidly to give a very light coverage of the body
- for maximum benefit Dermamist should be applied after washing.

Do not overspray as this may make the skin feel oily.

Do not spray directly on the face; you can spray your hands and then apply Dermamist to the face. Do not smoke when using Dermamist.

## What to do if you use more Dermamist than you should?

If you have used too much spray pat off the excess with a tissue.

## If you forget to use Dermamist

If you forget to use Dermamist, do not worry, just continue as normal. If you have any further questions on the use of this product, ask your doctor, nurse or pharmacist.

#### 4. Possible side effects

Like all medicines Dermamist can cause side effects, although not everyone gets them.

Side effects which may occur include: irritation, itch or rash.

## Reporting of side effects

If you get any side effects, talk to your doctor or pharmacist. This includes any possible side effects not listed in this leaflet. You can also report side effects directly via the Yellow Card Scheme at: <a href="https://www.mhra.gov.uk/yellowcard">www.mhra.gov.uk/yellowcard</a> or search for MHRA Yellow Card in the Google Play or Apple App Store. By reporting side effects you can help provide more information on the safety of this medicine.

#### **5. How to store Dermamist**

Keep out of the reach and sight of children.

Pressurised container, extremely flammable. Protect from sunlight. Do not puncture, burn or expose to temperatures over 50°C even when empty. Do not spray on a naked flame or anything which is very hot. Do not store above 25°C. Do not use after the expiry date printed on the base. The expiry date refers to the last day of that month after EXP.

Do not use Dermamist if you notice a change in the colour or feel of the spray.

Medicines should not be disposed of via wastewater or household waste. Ask your pharmacist on how to dispose of medicines no longer required. These measures will help protect the environment.

## 6. Contents of the pack and other information

#### **What Dermamist contains**

The active ingredient in this medicine is soft white paraffin 10% w/w. The other ingredients are liquid paraffin and fractionated coconut oil. The aerosol propellant used is a mixture of butane, isobutane and propane.

## What Dermamist looks like and contents of the pack

Dermamist is a cutaneous spray delivering white soft paraffin as a clear colourless spray by means of a pressurised aerosol.

**Marketing Authorisation Holder:** Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited, Avonbridge House, Chippenham, Wiltshire, SN15 2BB, UK.

**Manufactured by:** Pharmaserve (North West) Ltd, Runcorn, Cheshire, WA7 1NU, UK and CCL Industries Ltd, Scunthorpe, DN15 8QJ, UK and Pharmasol Ltd, Walworth Industrial Estate, Andover, SP10 5AZ, UK.

The information in this leaflet applies only to Dermamist. If you have any questions or you are not sure about anything, ask your doctor or a pharmacist.

#### This leaflet was last revised in 10/2019

Alliance, Alliance Pharmaceuticals and associated devices are registered trade marks of Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited.

Dermamist is a registered trade mark of Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited. © Alliance Pharmaceuticals Limited 2019.

SOLVENT ABUSE CAN KILL INSTANTLY